
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 

ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 

“This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

Board of Directors: Terry Lincoln - Chair  

Scott McVay, Vice Chair  

Directors – Pam Beaver, Beverly Fickes, Logan Johnston 

General Manager:  Paul Kelley 

REGULAR MEETING: December 18th 2024 at 6:00PM: District Office Board Room 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

a. Oath of Office for: Directors – Beaver, Johnston, McVay

4. OPEN TIME/PUBLIC COMMENT:  Pursuant to Gov. code S54950, persons wishing to address

the Board of Directors on matters not listed on the agenda should notify the Secretary prior to the

start of the meeting. To speak at this time and for any item listed on the agenda – raise your hand,

and when recognized by the Chair – proceed to the podium to address the Board.

5. CONSENT AGENDA (Action)

The following items are expected to be routine. Any interested party may comment or request an item be

removed from the consent agenda for separate discussion/action.

a. Minutes from Meetings – Regular meeting 11/20/24, Finance Committee: 12/10/24

b. Paid Bills: 11/14/24 – 12/14/24

c. Payroll: 11-7-24, 11-21-24.

d. Activity P&L Report: N/A – In progress

6. OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS (Discussion/Action)

a. O.B. – USBR Account Reconciliation - (Discussion)

b. District Audit RFP Selection – (Discussion/Action)

c. Water Treatment Plant Improvement Report from PACE Eng. And Treatment Division

Update – CPO Bill Palmaymesa (Discussion/Action)

d. Leaks and Repairs Report and Options – (Discussion/Action)

e. Ordinance 2024-10 Reserve Policy – (Discussion/Action)



 

 

 

ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 

 

                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

7. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT 

 

8. OPERATIONS REPORT 

 

9.  STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT –  

a. Agriculture – 

b. Finance –  

c. Planning/Steering –  

 

10.  BOARD MEMBER ITEMS 

 

11. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT: - None 

 

12.  ADJOURN THE MEETING 

 
 

 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  December 18th 2024 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  5 – Consent Agenda (Action) 
 
Discussion: 
 
5.a – Minutes of The Meetings:  Regular meeting 11/20/24, Special Meeting, Agriculture Committee: 

 Finance Committee: 12/10/24 Planning and Steering Committee: 

5.b – List of bills paid – from QuickBooks 11/14/24 – 12/14/24 
 
5.c – Payroll since last meeting: 11-7-24, 11-21-24 
 
5.d – Activity P&L Report: July, August, September 2024:  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion and Motion to approve items 5.a through 5.d 
 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

 
Board of Directors: Terry Lincoln - Chair  

Scott McVay, Vice Chair  
Directors – Pam Beaver, Beverly Fickes, Logan Johnston 

 
General Manager:  Paul Kelley 

 
REGULAR MEETING: November 20th 2024 at 6:00PM: District Office Board Room 

 
MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Chair Lincoln at 6pm 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Led by Director Fickes 
 

3. ROLL CALL – All Directors: Chair Lincoln, Vice-Chair McVay, Directors Beaver, Fickes, Johnston 

GM Paul Kelley, Distribution Supervisor Morgan Rau and 5 in audience 

 
4. OPEN TIME/PUBLIC COMMENT:  Dennis Possehn – mentioned meeting with Community 

Alliance for Family farmers.  And thanked the Staff for the leak fix at his property corner.  And 
suggested the Board consider or investigate declaring an emergency for all these leaks to get funding 
for more pipeline funding replacement.  If / when there are fires and if no water – that is bad and 
emergency.  Director McVay – added that the Com Alliance for Fam Farms was good meeting, and 
they helped small growers in a “farm to school” program. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA (Action) 
The following items are expected to be routine. Any interested party may comment or request an item be 
removed from the consent agenda for separate discussion/action.  

a. Minutes from Meetings – Regular meeting 10/16/24 
b. Paid Bills: 10/14/24 – 11/14/24 
c. Payroll: 10-10-24, 10-24-24. 
d. Activity P&L Report: July: August and September and October and November (N/A)  

Director Fickes noted amendment to the Minutes under section 10 
GM Kelley replied to fix/edit the minute to “spoke about having four distribution staff instead of raised concerns 
about”, fix/edit the word “compliment” to “complement”. 
GM Kelley mentioned on the Paid bills the attempt to get more descriptions in the memos for payables that 
include more than one payment for a vendor. 
Also mentioned a few of the Grant Payments on the Payables covered by the RCAC Grant Anticipation note. 



ADA Related Disabilities: 
Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 

           “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

GM Kelley then discussed the updated Activity P&L for July – heightened the mention that the change to Accrual 
for the Revenue and Expenses is different than previous district practice.  The later item on the FY24 will cover 
this more.  Recommended that the Board approve the consent 5.a-5.c and this July P&L as information and 
include in the December meeting for approval. 

Motion to approve consent with minutes as amended: Director Fickes, 2nd: Director McVay Vote: 5-0 Unanimous 

6. OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS (Discussion/Action)
a. O.B. – USBR Account Reconciliation - (Discussion)

GM Kelley reviewed the items listed in the packet – nothing new on reconciliation of 2021, but there 
was a meeting on the WIIN act reconciliation.  And mentioned the “healthy rivers”/Natural
Flow/Voluntary agreements discussions that could impact CVP members.

b. Operations Report – Distribution Supervisor Morgan Rau (Discussion)
GM Kelley introduced Distribution Supervisor Morgan Rau,
Morgan Rau: Provided an update from the Operations report, mentioned getting more contractors 
listed for helping:  Axner Exc. / Kelly’s Exc./ Davis Exc. / Sunrise. Even working to get them for some 
work to catch up or supply people for relief during large leaks.
Mentioned: 4 Large active leaks now, multiple Service Leaks need attention, 17 Isolation valves need 
attention/replacement / Hydrant at HopeKay.
Since July (when started) – 22 large leaks, will provide a list of the recent leaks to the Board. Backflow 
testing is completed by the consultant/contractor
Director Beaver – Mentioned getting a letter of agreement of responsibility with local Fire Depts so 
when hydrants are turned off incorrectly and cause damage they will help cover the cost of the repairs.
GM Kelley – explained to the board of the recent incident where tree trimming company backed into 
our hydrant and caused damage. We will be sending a letter and invoice to the company. Also, 
explained situation regarding fire where hydrant was shut down incorrectly by the fire dept. causing 
damage and Customers to be without water. We will be sending letter and cost breakdown to CalFire 
for that as well.
Dir Fickes – Noticed in the OT time cards a 17-hour shift – can that be? Can we rotate people? What 
is the process out there?
Dist. Sup: Morgan Rau – Yes it happened and points to the need for me to be more focused on 
planning and use of resources. We can have the crew overworked and not available when needed and 
use other resources (like contractors) to get some rest. Explained the process of how the leaks are 
repaired and what it takes to complete it.
Director Beaver – You are doing good – equipment review, and staffing abilities.
Dir. McVay – Are we documenting all the elements of the leaks? And if using contractors, making sure 
we have scope and what they are held responsible for?
Dist. Sup Rau – Yes to both, I have Leak logs with all that information (water
loss/equipment/materials and crew) and am clearer with contractors.



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

Also – mentioned that meter reading is getting better (July 2 weeks, now one) – and the need to 
replace all the transponders and registers on those failing and the manual routes.  
Dist. Sup – Rau: reviewed the current equipment – and mentioned that the Dump truck / Backhoe 
and Skid are needed. Could really use a Vac-Trailer. 
Dir Beaver – Asked if there is any equipment we can get rid of to get a Vac-Trailer? Mentioned we 
should look at a lease instead of a purchase, maintenance is a challenge and issue. 
Dist. Sup – Rau: Responded to Dir Beaver - No equipment that we can get rid of, we use all. 
Dir McVay – mentioned that at $600/ rental – maybe it’s more cost effective to get a lease or just 
schedule a rental every other week to deal with the needs and rent when needed on a leak – 
Public Member: Possehn: Asked why the meter reading is taking so much longer and challenging? 
Dist. Sup Rau: Transponders running out of battery, manual reads have gone from hundred to many 
hundreds, really need to replace and update all the registers and transponders. And make sure all get 
read. New Software and updates.  

c. District Staffing Needs and Plans – (Discussion) 
GM Kelley – Reviewed the memo. The Whole staff of the District and that in August brought the 
change from 4.5 in Distribution to 5 was within the budget.  And that the WTP Operator In Training 
that made WTP division at 3 was also extremely helpful (converting the 2.5 to 3). 
Director Beaver:  I asked for this item because we need to stay focused on efficient use of our staff 
and have as much money available to fix the Treatment plant needs – like Train 6 and replace pipe – 
which is our priority. With an additional staff member those costs take from fixing stuff.  Don’t believe 
we can afford to have more staff until the fixes are done at treatment and on pipelines. Which is 
what Bill has been telling us for years. We are listening and agree that repairs are priority.  
Director Fickes: This was within budget, but how do we make sure it’s not like 6 years ago when there 
were a lot of employees and salaries out of control. When does the board have a decision on staff 
level – do we need a cap? 
Chair Lincoln – Paul brings it to our attention when he would like to hire, and we give him a “yes” or 
“no.”  
Gm Kelley – Suggested this could be in a budget policy document… “the current staff level is xx, if 
more than xx is needed and more budget needed the board would need to approve.”  Or something 
along those lines. This current action was converting a position that was ½ in each division – at max 
pay – to full in each division and is well within the budget. That is not counting potential OT. 
Dist. Sup: Rau – Yes, it is critical we have four in the division, including me, meter reads, locates, and if 
someone is out or resigns work can continue.  In the past when two left at once there was no one left 
for the work.  
Public: Dennis Possehn: Comment, need to get funding for pipes. 
        Robert Warton: Fire is a crisis; Happy Valley can help block fire towards Redding like a fire 
break. 
 
 
 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

d. FY 24 Actuals vs Budget Year End – (Discussion/Action) 
GM Kelley reviewed the differences between Accrual and Cash.  And that the District till March of 
2024 was cash in Revenue and Accrual in expenses. 
CUSI was porting number and in August the Bookkeeper found that the incompatibility of the port 
was the issue and spent three months fixing and reconciling.  This report is still preliminary since there 
are items that still need to be reconciled. 
Also, this report shows the challenge of tracking Grant Expenses and Reimbursements. The 
Reimbursement create excessive revenue and many organizations (like LAFCO) base the next years 
fees/dues on Revenue – so Bookkeeper is working with J Martin CPA to find a better solution 
Reviewed the excess revenue – mostly in Base Rate and last half of year the increase is also from 
“billed” amounts – Accrual vs paid.  But the District did get LIHWAP monies – so there is more 
revenue than budgeted. 
After all bottom line – as described by the memo – the $270K is ACCRUAL excess revenue, reviewing 
the cash revenue – it’s about $200K less or a net of $64K 
Dir Fickes – That is unfortunate, was hoping for more to put into fixing the stuff needed – like the 
Trains.  The reports are confusing with the mix of Accrual. 
Dir McVay - that seems about right on the actual cash excess. 
More discussion of the different factors – like Dir. Johnston mentioned the 80K overage in Distribution 
O&M.  How do we keep that under control and remember that expenses in other areas mean less to 
back fill this overage. 
General Discussion – and plan to bring back after some updates. 
GM Kelley said that report in December and expect that January meeting we could have a ½ year 
budget to actuals and adjustments then. Will also have a report on the Treatment Plant in December. 
Dir McVay – Would like to have this fiscal year we’ve been reviewing with us at that time so we can 
identify the challenges and see where our current budget is to help us with guidelines for the 
adjustments we need to make. 
  

e. Cross Connection Control Handbook Regulations Update – (Discussion) 
GM Kelley reviewed the items in the memo and packet. 
Mentioned this a year ago was coming 
Adopted by State July 1, 2024, and complied with by July 1, 2025 
Unfunded mandate and looking at ways to comply with the Plan/Program development, outreach, and 
the rest. 
Including – potentially through contract with consultants or City of Anderson. Maybe internal staff? 
Bella Vista received a quote from an out-of-state contractor and that quote came back at half a 
million dollars for five-year implementation. 
There’s a list of items that need to be included - we will need to have an Operating Rules and 
Ordinances for the program. We must create a program, at some point the Board will have to add to 
its water service policies or do a separate ordinance. Supposed to have a designated Cross Control 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

program, we will have to have hazard assessments and will have to do a survey on all our connections 
in the District, we must have a backflow prevention plan created by a certified backflow specialist.  
Dir Johnston – What is backflow device testing do or mean? 
Audience member and CPO Bill Palmaymesa – it has multiple check valves, and the testing Is by a 
sequence of pressure points – all to avoid when a suction back to our water system occurs, there is no 
intrusion of outside water.  And commercial – could be a soda machine, ice machine or other stuff like 
that should have backflow.  The Schools in HV should have adequate backflow. 
Dir McVay – so we must have a plan in place by July 1st of this next year.  
Dir Beaver – we may have to wait for Paul to speak with City of Anderson to see if they can help us or 
to explore all our options then we will know how to move forward with the program. 
Dir Fickes – this is a challenge, and maybe the cost of outside help more that internal – and its more 
cost with no revenue. 
GM Kelley will try to have more information regarding the options available in December, so we know 
how to move forward with the program. 
 

f. General Manager Employment Agreement Amendment 2 – (Discussion/Action)  
GM Kelley – This is the result of the Gm employment agreement, on the website including 
amendment 1 from last year.  After a performance review the Board authorized these changes and 
needs to be brought to a regular meeting in open session.  There is a “red line” and clean copy. 
There are a few sections mentioned – compensation, benefits to track District Retiree medical, 
removal of sick leave cap and increase to admin leave. 
Motion to approve Amendment 2 to employment agreement and authorize chair signature: Dir 
Johnston. 2nd: Dir Beaver = Vote 5-0: unanimous. 
 

7. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT 
GM Kelley reviewed and mentioned the items in the memo. 
Also mentioned that Application for another JPIA risk grant – for a walk behind concrete saw. 
The development of letters with costs / claims for the Tree Trimming company that hit a warf head hydrant and the 
fire department for the post fire on November 6th leak on Lassen. 
Dir Beaver mentioned family working for water departments and agreements with fire on protocols and costs to water 
infrastructure when fire departments involved. 
GM Kelley – that would be the desire of the letter to the Fire Dept now and eventual letter of protocol. 
Also mentioned: the Backwash ponds project and it is moving forward – still waiting for CalOES reimbursement. 
CPO Bill Palmaymesa (in audience) will be at the board meeting next month – we plan to have the PACE Eng review 
of the WTP needs and cost estimates and other updates from WTP. 
 

8. OPERATIONS REPORT 
GM Kelley mentioned to top line items – delinquencies, the shut off notices and only 8 shut off. One of Amity’s tasks is 
to utilize the Lien system in CUSI to identify and reduce the number of the aged A/R’s. 
Also mentioned that at the report time, the M&I and Ag was not known – its: M&I: 228, Ag: 67 
WTP did have a big leak as reported last month and now has a welder repair. 
Dist. Sup Morgan Rau already gave update. 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

Dir McVay – do we know how much acre feet we have processed through the WTP? Looks like we are ahead of last 
year.  
GM Kelley – we are ahead of last year partly due to a hot summer.  
 

9.  STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT –  
a. Agriculture – None till 2025, but helping host an Olive Community Group meeting December 11th 
b. Finance – Met last week and scheduled for December 10 
c. Planning/Steering – Meet in early 2025 

GM Kelley mentioned that in 2025 he plans to ask for the board to appoint a “Centerville contract renewal Ad-Hoc” 
committee for the limited time of 2 years and to end when contract renewal. 
 

10.  BOARD MEMBER ITEMS -  
BOARD ITEMS: 
Dir McVay – Is interested in visiting the WTP to see how the ponds are coming along and to look at the trains to 
better understand what is necessary. Dir Johnston is interested as well.  
GM Kelley – Discussed planning to make that happen. 
Dir Beaver – Would like to move up the December Board meeting so we aren’t too close to Christmas.  
GM Kelley – It’s up to the board but the challenge is figuring out what day to move it to due to other scheduled 
meetings. Really up to the Board. Last year we moved it up a week as well. We need to do the swearing in of 
Directors. If unable to be at the meeting, you can be sworn in in January. 
A general discussion across the board to decide which date would work – it was decided that we will keep the current 
date of Wednesday, December 18th. 
 

11. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT: - None 
 

12.  ADJOURN THE MEETING – 8:16pm 
 

 

 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

  
Board of Directors 

  
Directors - Beverly Fickes, Committee Chair: Scott McVay 

 
General Manager:  Paul Kelley 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

December 10th 2024 at 4PM: District Office Board Room 
 

Committee Responsibility 
The Board’s standing Financial Committee shall be concerned with the financial management of the Clear 

Creek CSD including the preparation and oversight of an annual budget, and oversight of reserve accounts and 
major expenditures. 

 
Minutes/Notes 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 4:03pm – Chair McVay 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Director Fickes 
 

3. ROLL CALL – Directors McVay and Fickes.  GM Kelley, Admin Assistant Valdez (Till 4 :50 pm) 
 

4. OPEN TIME/PUBLIC COMMENT:  None 
 

5. OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS (Discussion/Action) 
a. Audit RFP Response Review and Recommendation to Board – Discussion 

GM Kelley reviewed the proposals, spreadsheet of proposal components, and rating sheet. 
Chair McVay and Director Fickes asked questions, reviewed each proposer staffing, schedule, and 
capabilities. 
GM Kelley mentioned he called Valley of Moon Water who had good reports on Harshwal and Co. 
As well as Buckingham Park water who had good reports on Roman Richardson CPA. 
Also – asked about an agreement with Mutual opt out clauses – GM Kelley mentioned he asked for 
and received a copy of the Harshwal agreement with another agency and it includes 10 day opt outs 
for each party. 
Committee concluded that both proposals were good, both companies could accomplish the task and 
after rating each and discussing each – would recommend Harshwal & Company, LLC. 

• Based on these findings: Understanding and clearly state the schedule to get audits 
caught up 

• Firm has staffing resources to stay on task through challenges 



ADA Related Disabilities: 
Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 

           “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

• The referrals and experience with CSDs
• A more thorough, professional, and substantial proposal
• And would want to make sure agreement has the stated timelines

- This would be taken to board December 18th, 2024, GM Kelley will reach to Harshwal to get
an Engagement letter to present to the board by the December 18th meeting.

b. FY 24 Budget to Actuals – Update – Discussion
GM Kelley provided copies of the updated report
Mentioned that most of the coding issues appear to be corrected.  Like the UAL amount separated 
out, but there are other coding issues still to be resolved and items questioned
And – that there is more to do – like getting the Grant Revenue and Expenses out.  As well as the 
accounting in “expenses” the Non-Op revenue.  After that and the other reserves – the “gross profit” 
is around 60K.
There are other items that still need to be dealt with – to make it more finalized and looking to do so 
for January.

c. FY 25 P&L Update – Discussion
GM Kelley provided the FY 25 Q1 P&L – its not useful yet since it has the Grant Expenses 
overwhelming by $2million the bottom line – without considering the Interest expense and the $2mil 
from the RCAC loan.
It does show some things like higher Distribution O&M costs
Director Fickes asked about another column with a “Yearly” Budget – since some of these expenses 
cover a one-time expense (like Dues, or Insurance) and looks well over the quarterly budget amount 
but within the Yearly budget.
GM Kelley mentioned looking for a way to show that information.
Chair McVay asked about the timeline for a ½ year budget to actuals and budget adjustment in Jan/
Feb – GM Kelley said that was the goal.

d. Reserve Policy – Discussion
GM Kelley shared the final draft.  Director Fickes reviewed and mentioned a couple of typos.
GM Kelley fixed those and mentioned the edits from last time – primarily adding a line to the 
Backwash Recycle payment account and it holding 1 years of payment as per loan agreement and 
that the account is restricted.

6. ADJOURN THE MEETING – 5:14pm



Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

8000 ꞏ Accounts Payable
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33832 Ace Hardware - Acct# 2118 2118 -403.53
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33833 AL's Saw Shop mower fixed -38.53
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33834 Allen Gill Construction, Inc. BWP Grant -540,713.50
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33835 AT&T s. booster -4.43
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33836 Cintas Corporation 22228100 -97.94
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33837 City of Redding West Centr... 0275803-5 -37.50
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33838 Davis Excavating hydrant repair -3,500.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33839 Fasteners Inc 373 -46.31
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33840 Hansen Pressure Washer ... pressure washer refab -2,204.90
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33841 Napa Auto Parts 1931 -145.11
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33842 Nor Cal Gloves 5312 -452.70
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33843 Pace Analytical Services LLC 28-100128 -827.98
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33844 Pace Engineering BWP Grant -80,063.75
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33845 Professional Exterminator o... 17387 -65.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33846 Rob's Portable Welding wtp -420.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/14/2024 33847 Verizon 242343122-00001 -52.07
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/15/2024 eft 0931 Pacific Gas & Electric office/well -4,124.61
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/15/2024 eft 2271 Pacific Gas & Electric wells 1&2 -2,357.02
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/15/2024 eft 9464 Waste Management 3-99477-15008 -201.51
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/18/2024 33848 USBR - Water Payments VOID: due to needing tw... 0.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/18/2024 33849 USBR - Water Payments 14-06-200-489-A-P -16,065.77
Bill Pmt -Ch... 11/18/2024 33850 USBR - Water Payments 14-06-200-489-A-P -12,469.84
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/01/2024 Auto Paid UNUM Life Insurance of Co. -1,333.79
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/01/2024 auto paid Cascarina, Rick Dec 2024 -260.93
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/01/2024 Auto EFT Humana - Dental Ins 412851-001 -1,450.81
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/01/2024 auto paid RCAC-Loan Fund (Dump T... 6332-CCCSD-01 -1,696.07
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/09/2024 AT&T QuickBooks generated z... 0.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33851 Ability Answering & Paging ... 05-1-8495 -452.16
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33852 Ace Hardware - Acct # 2186 2186 -355.18
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33853 Ace Hardware - Acct# 2118 2118 -54.23
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33854 Alhambra (formerly Mt Sha... 1020179424385352 -51.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33855 Allen Gill Construction, Inc. BWP Grant -438,094.95
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33856 AT&T wtp -415.83
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33857 Axner Excavating, Inc. 6920038 -4,389.50
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33858 Badger Meter, Inc. 41827 -101.82
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33859 Bay Alarm Company 1201366 -33.32
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33860 Beaver, Patricia A Brd Mtg 112024 -100.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33861 Blue Star Gas 11-1018001 -965.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33862 Cascade Comfort Service (... center heater unit main o... -99.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33863 CDTFA (Tax and Fee Admi... USBR1130 -22,940.66
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33864 Cintas Corporation 22228100 -391.76
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33865 Com-Pair Services 10117 -110.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33866 Computer Logistics Corp IT computer services -848.93
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33867 Davis Excavating dorvel repair -900.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33868 Fasteners Inc 373 -236.26
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33869 Ferguson Waterworks 409921 -14,411.86
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33870 Fickes, Beverly -125.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33871 Harvest Printing Company customer bills -3,269.55
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33872 I-5 Rentals Inc 175 -564.21
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33873 Johnston, Logan Brd Mtg 112024 -100.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33874 Kelley, Paul Food for ACWA/JPIA Tra... -67.91
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33875 Leonard, Lyle T1 exam and cert -105.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33876 Les Schwab multiple units tires/flat re... -1,903.13
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33877 McVay, Scott -125.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33878 Napa Auto Parts 1931 -106.35
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33879 Nor Cal Gloves 5312 -420.48
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33880 Northwood Backflow Servic... backflow test annual -5,435.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33881 Pace Analytical Services LLC 28-100128 -1,024.55
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33882 Pace Engineering BWP Grant Invoices -65,347.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33883 Pedrotti Materials roadbase and sand -546.13
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33884 Plumas Credit Card -1,950.23
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33885 Professional Exterminator o... 17387 -65.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33886 RCAC -Loan Fund BWP Gr... 1140-CCCSD-02 -8,166.77
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33887 Rossie Electrical Controls ... 400 -750.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33888 Sunbelt Rentals, Inc. 948758 -2,257.50
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33889 United Public Employees of... two months union payme... -888.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33890 United Rentals 3376283 -3,776.84
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33891 US Bank Equipment Finance 1453267 -516.74

9:20 AM Clear Creek Community Services District

12/12/24 Transaction Detail by Account
Accrual Basis November 14 through December 14, 2024

Page 1



Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33892 Valley Pacific C850335 -2,494.46
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33893 Waste Management 3-99477-15008 -201.51
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/10/2024 33894 Wienhoff Drug Testing CLEARCR -255.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 EFT 0d59 Amazon Capital Services, I... A3SGCPAZF6QYSB -495.79
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 Eft 1328 CalPERS Health Ins Nov health insurance -22,165.20
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 Eft 2321 CalPERS PEPRA/Classic UAL -15,024.58
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 eft 2747 Office Depot Business Credit computer battery back up... -241.84
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 eft 2941 Pacific Gas & Electric wells 1&2 -196.55
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 Eft 4741 Pacific Gas & Electric office/well3 -1,252.33
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 EFT 7591 Pacific Gas & Electric pond -261.72
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 eft 1101 Pacific Gas & Electric wtp -3,685.93
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 Eft5271 Pacific Gas & Electric n. booster -489.00
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 eft 6311 Pacific Gas & Electric clear creek/ hv -91.47
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 eft 7351 Pacific Gas & Electric outdoor lights -21.75
Bill Pmt -Ch... 12/11/2024 eft 4052 TDS 530-357-2121 -357.34

Total 8000 ꞏ Accounts Payable -1,298,729.92

TOTAL -1,298,729.92

9:20 AM Clear Creek Community Services District

12/12/24 Transaction Detail by Account
Accrual Basis November 14 through December 14, 2024

Page 2



CHECK REGISTER

Check Register
Period Start - End Date 11/22/24 - 12/05/24 Page 1 of 1
Check Date 12/12/24 CHKRECREG

COMPANY BANK ACCOUNT

NAME ID

CHECK

DATE

CHECK NUMBER

DIRECT DEPOSIT

AMOUNT

NEGOTIABLE CHECK

AMOUNT

10010
30042
30043
30041
20080
20090
30040
20060
30010
11010
11070
11060

12/12/24
12/12/24
12/12/24
12/12/24
12/12/24
12/12/24
12/12/24
12/12/24
12/12/24
12/12/24
12/12/24
12/12/24

113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124

2,905.46
2,299.78
1,912.34
2,209.11
1,976.50
2,281.03
2,262.72
2,455.64
3,866.98
1,784.41
1,351.02
1,848.87

BANK ACCOUNT TOTAL
12 Transaction(s)

27,153.86 0.00

COMPANY TOTAL
12 Transaction(s)

27,153.86 0.00



CHECK REGISTER

Check Register
Period Start - End Date 11/08/24 - 11/21/24 Page 1 of 1
Check Date 11/27/24 CHKRECREG

COMPANY BANK ACCOUNT

NAME ID

CHECK

DATE

CHECK NUMBER

DIRECT DEPOSIT

AMOUNT

NEGOTIABLE CHECK

AMOUNT

10010
30042
30043
30041
20080
20090
30040
20060
30010
11010
11070
11060

11/27/24
11/27/24
11/27/24
11/27/24
11/27/24
11/27/24
11/27/24
11/27/24
11/27/24
11/27/24
11/27/24
11/27/24

101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112

2,780.40
1,894.72
1,636.58
2,866.31
2,400.43
1,838.76
2,497.22
2,244.82
4,203.62
1,813.04
1,351.03
1,849.25

BANK ACCOUNT TOTAL
12 Transaction(s)

27,376.18 0.00

COMPANY TOTAL
12 Transaction(s)

27,376.18 0.00



CHECK REGISTER

Check Register
Period Start - End Date 10/25/24 - 11/07/24 Page 1 of 1
Check Date 11/14/24 CHKRECREG

COMPANY BANK ACCOUNT

NAME ID

CHECK

DATE

CHECK NUMBER

DIRECT DEPOSIT

AMOUNT

NEGOTIABLE CHECK

AMOUNT

10010
30042
30043
30041
20080
20090
20060
30010
11010
11070
11060

11/14/24
11/14/24
11/14/24
11/14/24
11/14/24
11/14/24
11/14/24
11/14/24
11/14/24
11/14/24
11/14/24

90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

100

2,780.39
3,155.60
2,449.40
3,342.48
2,389.23
2,338.71
2,101.42
4,008.16
1,790.21
1,351.03
1,855.25

BANK ACCOUNT TOTAL
11 Transaction(s)

27,561.88 0.00

COMPANY TOTAL
11 Transaction(s)

27,561.88 0.00



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  December 18th 2024 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  6 - Old business/New Business (Discussion/Action) 
 
Discussion: 
 
6.a – USBR Report – Account Reconciliation (Discussion) 
 
This item for discussion on Account Reconciliation update, and other USBR water related items 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, provide direction to GM. 
 
6.b District Audit RFP Selection and engagement letter (Discussion/Action) 
 
 
See item memo for more background and discussion. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Provide Direction and approve GM signature on engagement letter. 
 
 
 
 
6.c Water Treatment Plant Improvement Report from PACE Eng. And Treatment Division 
Update – CPO Bill Palmaymesa (Discussion/Action) 
 
The written operations report is included later in the agenda.  
CPO Bill Palmaymesa is in attendance to provide a verbal update and take questions from the Board and 
Community. 
 
The Board has also been waiting for the PACE Engineering WTP Improvement report – attached for 
discussion and direction. 
 
See item memo for more background and discussion. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Provide Direction  
 
 



 
 

 

 

 
6.d Leaks and Repairs Report and Options (Discussion/Action) 
 
 
See item memo for more background and discussion. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Provide Direction  
 
 
 
6.e Ordinance 2024-10 Reserve Policy (Discussion/Action) 
 
 
See item memo for more background and discussion. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, By motion approve the attached ordinance  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  December 18th  2024 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  6a – USBR report and Account Reconciliation 
 
Discussion: 
 
6.a –  
 
 
This item for discussion on Account Reconciliation update, and other USBR water related items. 
 
There is nothing to report on Account Reconciliation. 
 
If more, then reported at meeting. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, provide direction to GM. 
 
 



5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 
Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 

MEMO 
Date: December 18th 2024 
To: Board of Directors 
From: General Manager – Paul Kelley 

Re: District Audit RFP Selection and engagement letter (Discussion/Action) 

Discussion/Action: 

6.b – District Audit RFP Selection and engagement letter (Discussion/Action)

The Board reviewed the CCCSD Auditor RFP at their October Meeting. 

The District sent the RFP to over 30 CPA firms – Generally Sacramento/Bay Area North to Redding.  Some 
responded that they no longer did Government Audits.  Others mentioned capacity issues and challenges of 
responding to RFP’s. 

The District received two qualified “Audit RFP Response Proposals” from two CPA firms. 

Staff put together a Spreadsheet with pertinent information for the assessment and the Finance Committee 
held a publicly noticed meeting December 10th with the Spreadsheet and complete proposals at their disposal. 

The Two proposers are: Harshwal & Company LLC.  And Richardson CPA or RTN CPA, LLC. 

Both firms had experience and the GM called one of their references with a good report.  Both firms could 
complete the tasks. 

The Committee and Staff reviewed and rated the proposals and recommend to the Board to select Harshwal 
& Company LLC and authorize the GM to sign an engagement letter that has timelines and mutual cancelation 
clauses. 

The Primary reasons for the recommendation of Harshwal: 
- Their Understanding and clearly stating the schedule to get audits caught up (FY23 and FY24 by June

of 2025)
- The Firm has staffing resources to stay on task through potential challenges
- The referrals and experience with CSDs – and that the GM had talked to one of their references with

a good report.
- The proposals was more thorough, professional, and substantial
- And the GM reported that their engagement letter with another District had a timeline and mutual

opt out clause.

Attached: The RFP Response Spreadsheet with essential information. (to save size of packet) 

Available: Upon request each CPA’s proposal and a copies available at meeting. and Engagement letter

Recommendation: 

Review, Discussion, By Motion: Authorize GM to Sign Engagement Letter with Harshwal & Company, LLC 



















5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 
Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 

MEMO 

Date: December 18th 2024 
To: Board of Directors 
From: General Manager – Paul Kelley 

Re: 6c – Water Treatment Plant Improvement Report from PACE Eng. And 
Treatment Division Update – CPO Bill Palmaymesa (Discussion/Action) 

Discussion/Action: 

6.c –  Water Treatment Plant Improvement Report from PACE Eng. And Treatment Division 
Update – CPO Bill Palmaymesa (Discussion/Action)

During the Boards FY 2025 Budget discussion and approval; the Water Treatment Plant’s filters and trains 
that need attention was a focus of the Board.  The District allocated funds to have PACE engineering to a 
review of the States “Sanitary” survey and needs identified by District Staff and the CPO Palmaymesa and 
provide an Engineering report with cost estimates. 

Attached is PACE Engineering “Water Treatment Plant Improvement Report” for the Boards Review. 

The CPO Bill Palmaymesa is here to provide an update on the WTP operations (usually written in the 
Operations Report – later in the agenda) – much like the Distribution Division report done in person last 
Month. 

And the CPO is here to discuss this Engineers report with the Board. 

Staff and the Board will also discuss options and methods to proceed from here.  This information will help 
the District to start the process of solving items listed. 

Some next steps options: 
- Select critical components to start the engineering and bid process
- Select a preferred alternative
- Look for Grants
- Ask PACE for a proposal to apply for a Grant to fund an alternative.
- Other options for discussion

Attached: Preliminary Engineering Report – Water Treatment Plant Improvements – PACE Engineering

and the 2022 State Sanitary Survey report on WTP

 Recommendation: 

Review, Discussion, Provide Direction for Next steps 



 
 

 
 
 

WATER/WASTEWATER  CIVIL  SURVEY  STRUCTURAL  ELECTRICAL 
MECHANICAL & PLUMBING  INSTRUMENTATION & CONTROLS  

(530) 244-0202   www.paceengineering.us 
 

 

 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
REPORT 

 
WATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS 

 
DECEMBER 2024 

 
JOB NO. 104.68 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 

Clear Creek Community Services District 
 

Prepared by: 
 

PACE Engineering, Inc. 



 
CLEAR CREEK CSD 

104.68 
 

 
 
 

WATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS 
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT 
  

 

ENGINEER’S STATEMENT 

 

We are pleased to present the Preliminary Engineering Report for the Water Treatment Plant 
Improvements.  This report contains our investigation of Clear Creek Community Services 
District’s water treatment plant, including intake, chlorination, coagulation, and filtration 
facilities.  This report includes recommendations to restore the plant back to its current design 
capacity with three filtration alternatives.  Preliminary project cost estimates were prepared for 
each alternative. 

 

PACE Engineering, Inc. is very pleased to have participated in this project.  We thank your staff 
for their assistance in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________  Date:  December 10, 2024 
Garett Hattenhauer, P.E., 76784 
Senior Engineer 

 

12/10/24



 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION PAGE 

1. INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................. 1 

2. EXISTING TREATMENT FACILITIES.................................................................................... 1 

2.1 Raw Water Intake ........................................................................................................... 1 

2.2 Pre-Filter Chlorination .................................................................................................... 2 

2.3 Coagulation ..................................................................................................................... 2 

2.4 Filtration .......................................................................................................................... 2 

Overview ......................................................................................................................... 2 

Performance ................................................................................................................... 3 

Backwash ........................................................................................................................ 4 

2.5 Post-Filter Chlorination ................................................................................................... 4 

3. RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS .................................................................................. 4 

3.1 Raw Water Intake ........................................................................................................... 5 

3.2 Pre-Filter Chlorination .................................................................................................... 5 

3.3 Coagulation ..................................................................................................................... 5 

3.4 Filtration .......................................................................................................................... 5 

Alternative 1 ................................................................................................................... 5 

Alternative 2 ................................................................................................................... 6 

Alterative 3 ..................................................................................................................... 6 

3.5 Post-Filter Chlorination ................................................................................................... 7 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A – Construction Cost Estimates 

  



 

ii 

ABBREVIATIONS 

The following abbreviations are used in this report: 

CSD Community Services District 

District Clear Creek Community Services District 

ENR Engineering News Record 

FPS Feet per Second 

GPM/ft2 Gallons per Minute per Square Foot 

HDPE High-Density Polyethylene Pipe 

MCC Motor Control Center 

MCL Maximum Contaminant Level 

MGD Million Gallons per Day 

NTU Nephelometric Turbidity Units 

PAC Polyaluminum Hydroxy Chloride 

WTP Water Treatment Plant



CLEAR CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
WATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT 
DECEMBER 2024 

 

Clear Creek Community Services District  1 
Water Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering Report 

1. INTRODUCTION 

The Clear Creek Community Services District (CSD or District) operates an inline filtration water 

treatment plant (WTP), located near the base of the Whiskeytown Dam.  The WTP is the 

primary source of agricultural, municipal, and industrial water for Clear Creek CSD and 

municipal and industrial water for Centerville CSD.  Water began flowing into the District in 

1967 via the Muletown Conduit and the original WTP was constructed in 1976.  The original 

WTP consisted of two 8-foot-diameter by 40-foot-long pressure filters.  Some upgrades have 

been done since then, and the existing WTP has a capacity of 33 million gallons per day (MGD) 

with a filter loading rate of 8 gallons per minute per square foot (GPM/ft2).  Typically, the WTP 

operates at 14 MGD with a loading rate of 3 GPM/ft2.  Raw surface water is supplied by water 

impounded by Whiskeytown Dam and pre-filter chlorination, coagulation, filtration, and 

post-filter chlorination are each used as part of the treatment process.  

2. EXISTING TREATMENT FACILITIES 

2.1 RAW WATER INTAKE 

Water for the District is diverted from Whiskeytown Lake through two penstocks located at the 

base of the dam and owned by the United States Bureau of Reclamation.  The penstocks are 

original to the dam, which was constructed around 1965.  Water can be withdrawn at an 

elevation of 1,110 or 965 feet, depending on which penstock gate is utilized.  The selection of 

depth sometimes gives the District an opportunity to avoid turbid water and other 

contaminants, such as algae and water fleas (Daphnia spp.).  Due to age and condition, the 

main butterfly valves at Penstock 1 currently leak and Penstock 2 is suspected to have issues 

per District staff.  

Diversion from the penstocks continues via two 48-inch motor-actuated butterfly valves.  The 

valves are housed in an underground vault that was constructed approximately at the same time 

as the dam.  Both valves are original and currently leak.  Water is transported from the intake to 

the 24-inch-diameter raw water diversion via the 45-inch-diameter Muletown Conduit. 



 
 

Clear Creek Community Services District  2 
Water Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering Report 

2.2 PRE-FILTER CHLORINATION 

Pre-filter chlorination facilities are located adjacent to the 24-inch diversion and consist of an 

abandoned meter vault and an aboveground structure housing four automatic chlorinators, 

chlorine residual analyzers, turbidimeters, particle counters, backwash and recycle pumps, and 

scales for weighing two one-ton chlorine gas cylinders.  The chlorine facilities are original to the 

WTP, but the abandoned metering vault has since been bypassed by the 24-inch piping reduced 

to 18-inch piping to the WTP located about 350 feet away.  The chlorination facilities were 

further modified in 1996 to allow for a new 30-inch chlorinated water pipeline and 30-inch 

filtered water pipeline to replace the 18-inch piping.  The original 24-inch diversion from the 

45-inch Muletown Conduit was not upgraded as part of the project.  Chlorine gas is injected 

into the 24-inch section of pipe just before the 30-inch chlorinated water pipeline 

improvements.  The 24-inch bottleneck between the 45-inch Muletown Conduit and 30-inch 

chlorinated water main is causing high velocity and scour concerns.  The chlorine injection point 

has had no maintenance, as it is buried and inaccessible to District staff. 

2.3 COAGULATION 

The coagulation process includes dosing two coagulants, polyaluminum hydroxy chloride (PAC) 

and Zeta Floc 20, downstream of the pre-filter chlorination injection point.  Both coagulants are 

stored at the filter control building approximately 350 feet away from the primary coagulant 

dosing point.  Typically, PAC is used as the primary coagulant and is injected approximately 

one foot downstream of the pre-filter chlorination injection point.  The secondary cationic 

coagulant, Zeta Floc 20, is used as a floc-builder filter aid and injected at a static mixer 

immediately before the filters.  Similar to the pre-filter chlorination, the primary coagulant 

injection point is buried underground and is inaccessible to District staff.  

2.4 FILTRATION 

OVERVIEW 

The WTP consists of eight filters, which operate by gravity and under pressure from the 

Whiskeytown Reservoir.  Four of the filters, Filters 1, 2, 3, and 4, are 8 feet in diameter by 

40 feet in length (8’ x 40’), and four of the filters, Filters 5, 6, 7, and 8, are 10 feet in diameter by 

50 feet in length (10’ x 50’).  The first two 8’ x 40’ filters were installed in 1976 as part of the 



 
 

Clear Creek Community Services District  3 
Water Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering Report 

original WTP.  Shortly after, in 1985, a third 8’ x 40’ filter was installed.  Then in 1996, the WTP 

was expanded to provide full-time filtration, which added a fourth 8’ x 40’ filter and the 

four 10’ x 50’ filters.  Filters 1 through 4 each contain two cells.  Two of the filters are paired 

together to make a filter train of four cells in total.  Filters 5 through 8 consist of three cells each, 

and each filter is a separate treatment train.  Thus, there are a total of six treatment trains 

between the eight filters.  Each filter train is a unit that can be selected to operate when the 

WTP is called or can be placed in standby mode.  When the filters are first turned on, the filtered 

water is sent to the rinse-to-waste pond to ensure the filters are working properly before 

filtered water is sent to post-filter chlorination.  Filter trains are backwashed independently.  

The backwash water is sent to the backwash ponds while the filtered water is dosed again with 

chlorine and finally sent to the distribution system via the Muletown Conduit. 

PERFORMANCE 

The treatment system is required to have turbidity levels less than 0.1 nephelometric turbidity 

units (NTU) to have a 2-log removal of Giardia in at least 95% of the sample readings.  The 

filters have historically met this requirement; however, other deficiencies have been noticed by 

WTP operators.  Filter Trains 1 and 2 are approximately 50 and 30 years old, respectively, and 

are well beyond their useful service life.  Most of these filters are original to the WTP, and only 

minor improvements have been done to replace failing infrastructure since that time.  Filters 5 

through 8 are approximately 30 years old and are also beyond their useful service life.  Similar 

to the other filters, Filters 5 through 8 have only had minor emergency improvements to keep 

the WTP running.  Almost all valves and actuators are in need of replacement.  Filter 8 is no 

longer operational due to corrosion, broken laterals, and media failure.  The District attempted 

to repair Filter 8 but continues to lose media during filter-to-waste and backwash cycles.  Filter 

8 is offline and considered nonoperational.  Similar deficiencies have occurred in Filter 6, and 

several filters require media rehabilitation.  The exteriors of the filters were blasted and 

recoated after the Carr Fire in recent years and appear to be intact. 

The existing motor control center (MCC) was installed in approximately 1970 and is housed inside 

of the filter control building.  The most recent service report, dated April 2024, indicated that the 

MCC has failing components, does not meet code, and is not supported for service or repair.  The 



 
 

Clear Creek Community Services District  4 
Water Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering Report 

existing breaker panel for the electric motor actuators, which controls the filters, does not meet 

code and is intended to have three-phase power.  The few electric actuators that have been 

replaced are single-phase and are not intended to be run with the existing three-phase breaker 

panel.  The District intends to replace all of the remaining electric actuators in the near future, 

switching from three-phase to single-phase, making the three-phase breaker panel obsolete.  

BACKWASH 

The filters enter a backwash cycle when one of the following conditions occurs: 1) when a 

pressure drop across the filter is seven to eight feet, 2) a predetermined run time has elapsed, 

or 3) another setpoint such as high filter effluent turbidity is exceeded.  During a backwash 

cycle, each cell in a filter train is backwashed sequentially, and only one cell is washed at a time.  

A typical backwash flow rate is 13.5 GPM/ft2 and lasts for 10 to 12 minutes per cell.  The 

backwash water leaves the filter control building and is disposed of in one of the two backwash 

ponds.  A project to repair Backwash Ponds 2 and 3 is currently under construction.  Backwash 

Pond 1 is only used in an emergency and serves as an emergency overflow detention pond. 

2.5 POST-FILTER CHLORINATION 

After filtration, chlorine gas is injected into the 30-inch filtered water effluent main, outside of 

the chlorination building, prior to the connection to the 45-inch Muletown Conduit.  Post-filter 

chlorination was added to the disinfection process during the 1970s.  Similar to the pre-filter 

chlorination injection point, the post-filter chlorination injection point is inaccessible to District 

staff and has not had maintenance since installation.  Directly downstream of the post-filter 

chlorination injection point, the 30-inch main reduces to the 1970s 24-inch filtered water 

effluent main that ties into the Muletown Conduit.  When the WTP is under peak demand 

conditions, the 24-inch main has velocity exceeding 17 feet per second (FPS).  

3. RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS 

Construction cost estimates for the recommended improvements described herein are 

provided in Appendix A at the end of this report.  Three filtration alternatives were evaluated as 

part of the recommended improvements.  The raw water, chlorination, and coagulation 

recommended improvements are the same for each filtration alternative. 



 
 

Clear Creek Community Services District  5 
Water Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering Report 

3.1 RAW WATER INTAKE 

The raw water intake is original to the dam, and the valves are known to leak.  It is 

recommended to replace the leaking 48-inch butterfly valves, electric actuator motors, and 

associated electrical equipment to restore the intake to its original capacity. 

3.2 PRE-FILTER CHLORINATION 

The pre-filter chlorination facility has had improvements over the years; however, the pre-filter 

chlorination injection point has never been upgraded or serviced.  The chlorine injection point 

is inaccessible to District staff, and the existing underground piping is undersized.  It is 

recommended to install a new chemical injection vault with new piping to fix the bottlenecking 

and provide access to the injection point. 

3.3 COAGULATION 

Similar to the pre-filter chlorination injection point, the primary coagulation injection point is 

inaccessible to District staff.  Since the existing coagulation injection point is only one foot 

downstream of the pre-filter chorine injection, it is recommended to install a new coagulation 

injection point inside the same vault as the pre-filter chlorine injection.  No improvements are 

recommended to the secondary coagulation injection point. 

3.4 FILTRATION 

The filtration process consists of eight filters, of which four are 8’ x 40’ and four are 10’ x 50’ filters.  

The electrical equipment and controls for the filters are housed in the connecting filter control 

building.  The filters, piping, and associated electrical equipment are beginning to fail and are in 

need of various improvements.  Three filtration improvement alternatives are discussed herein.  

ALTERNATIVE 1 

Alternative 1 consists of replacing Filters 1 through 4 and replacing the existing 8’ x 40’ filters with 

four new 8’ x 50’ filters.  Filters 1 through 4 are the smaller filters that are paired in treatment 

trains, which are original or part of the early improvements to the WTP.  All of these filters have 

exceeded their useful service life and are in need of replacement.  It is recommended to separate 

the treatment trains to allow for the filters to operate independently.  The valves and piping 

inside the filter piping gallery are of the same age as the filters and are beginning to fail.  Only 



 
 

Clear Creek Community Services District  6 
Water Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering Report 

one of the valves and a few actuators have been replaced during emergency situations.  It is 

recommended to replace all valves and remaining actuators for Filters 1 through 4.  

Alternative 1 also consists of improvements to Filters 5 through 8 and electrical upgrades.  

Filters 5 through 8 are the larger filters that were added to the WTP in 1996.  These filters are 

experiencing deficiencies as noted above.  Filter rehabilitation for all these filters is recommended 

to replace the media, laterals, and interior coating.  Similar to Filters 1 through 4, the associated 

piping and valves in the filter piping gallery are beginning to fail.  All valves are original to the WTP 

expansion, and only a few actuators have been replaced during emergencies.  It is recommended 

to replace all valves and remaining actuators for Filters 5 through 8.  Also, the existing Venturi flow 

meters are wearing out, and it is recommended to install an electromagnetic flow meter on each 

filter.  The electrical equipment for the filters is located in the filter control building.  The MCC is 

beyond its useful service life, does not meet code, and is not supported for repairs.  The breaker 

panel for the electric actuators is wired for three-phase, and it is not compatible with the new 

single-phase actuators.  It is recommended to replace the MCC and breaker panel.  This alternative 

would restore the WTP back to its original capacity. 

ALTERNATIVE 2 

Alternative 2 consists of demolishing Filters 1 through 4, associated piping, and electrical 

equipment and adding three new 10’ x 50’ filters, Filters 9 though 11, on the northeast side of 

Filter 8.  These improvements would also include expanding the building and the installation of 

all new associated piping and electrical equipment. 

Similar to Alternative 1, Alternative 2 consists of improvements to Filters 5 through 8 and 

electrical upgrades to the MCC and breaker panel.  This alternative would restore WTP capacity 

and allow the District to use the space where Filters 1 through 4 are located for other purposes. 

ALTERATIVE 3 

Alternative 3 consists of rehabilitating Filters 1 through 4 to be used as roughing filters and adding 

three new 10’ x 50’ filters, Filters 9 through 11, on the northeast side of Filter 8.  The addition of 

roughing filters would help remove more organics, thus lowering disinfection byproducts.  Per 

District staff, treated effluent currently meets the maximum containment level (MCL) for 



 
 

Clear Creek Community Services District  7 
Water Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering Report 

disinfection byproducts, but the MCL could be exceeded if the regulations become more stringent.  

As noted herein, the associated piping and valving to Filters 1 through 4 is beyond its useful 

service life and is beginning to fail.  It is recommended to replace all piping and valving necessary 

to convert Filters 1 through 4 to roughing filters.  The existing 18-inch pipeline would be utilized to 

supply raw water from the pre-filter chlorination facilities to the roughing filters during periods of 

high turbidity.  A new 18-inch pipeline of approximately 165 feet would be constructed to connect 

the 18-inch pipeline and 30-inch raw water pipeline. 

Similar to Alternative 2, Alternative 3 would include expanding the building and installing all 

new associated piping and electrical equipment to support the three new filters. 

Similar to Alternatives 1 and 2, Alterative 3 consists of the improvements to Filters 5 through 8 

and electrical upgrades to the MCC and breaker panel.  This alternative would restore WTP 

capacity and allows the District to be prepared for more stringent regulations.  

3.5 POST-FILTER CHLORINATION 

Post-filter chlorination was added to the disinfection process in the 1970s and has had little to 

no upgrades besides regular maintenance.  The post-filter chlorination injection point is 

inaccessible to District staff and has not had maintenance over the years.  The existing 24-inch 

filtered water effluent main exceeds the maximum recommended pipe velocity of 10 FPS and is 

beyond its useful service life.  It is recommended to replace this section with a new 30-inch 

pipeline.  It is also recommended to install a new vault around the post-filter chlorination 

injection site to allow for District access and maintenance.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATES 
 

APPENDIX A 



No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost
1 Total Cost

1 Mobilization/Demobilization 1 LS $25,000 $25,000

2 Bonds 1 LS $70,000 $70,000

3 Submittals 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

4 Insurance 1 LS $40,000 $40,000

5 Cleanup 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

6 Project Sign 1 LS $2,500 $2,500

7 Trench Sheeting & Shoring 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

8 Erosion Control Plan & Implementation 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

$178,000

9 48" Flanged BFV 2 EA $75,000 $150,000

10 Motor Actuator Improvements 2 EA $20,000 $40,000

$190,000

     Chlorination Facility

11 Pre-Filter Chlorination Vault 1 LS $270,000 $270,000

12 Post-Filter Chlorination Vault 1 LS $110,000 $110,000

13 24" FW Pipe Replacement 1 LS $148,000 $148,000

$528,000

     Filter Control Facility

14 MCC 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

15 Filter Breaker Panel 1 LS $50,000 $50,000

16 Misc. Electrical & Telemetry 1 LS $15,000 $15,000

17 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

$370,000

18 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

19 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

20 Replace Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

21 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

22 14" Flanged BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

23 18" Flanged BFV 1 EA $5,000 $5,000

24 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

25 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

26 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

27 New 8' x 50' Filter 1 EA $250,000 $250,000

28 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

$561,500

29 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

30 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

31 Replace Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

32 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

33 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

34 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

35 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

36 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

37 New 8' x 50' Filter 1 EA $250,000 $250,000

38 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

$561,500

39 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

40 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meterr 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

41 Replace Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

42 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

43 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

44 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

45 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

46 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

47 New 8' x 50' Filter 1 EA $250,000 $250,000

48 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

$561,500

49 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

50 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

51 Replace Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

52 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

53 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

54 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

55 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

56 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

57 New 8' x 50' Filter 1 EA $250,000 $250,000

58 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

$561,500

APPENDIX A

CLEAR CREEK CSD

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT

ALTERNATIVE 1 COST ESTIMATE

Construction Costs
     General

     Filter 4

     Subtotal General Cost

     Subtotal Intake Facility Construction Cost

     Subtotal Chlorination Facility Construction Cost

     Subtotal Filter 4 Construction Cost

     Subtotal Filter 1 Construction Cost

     Filter 3

     Filter 2

     Filter 1

     Subtotal Filter 3 Construction Cost

     Subtotal Filter 2 Construction Cost

     Subtotal Filter Control Facility Construction Cost

     Intake Facilities

M:\Jobs\0104 CCCSD\0104.68 WTP PER\12 Prelim Engineering\03 Engr Report\Cost Estimate\CCCSD Cost Est.xlsx



No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost
1 Total Cost

59 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

60 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

61 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

62 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

63 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

64 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

65 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

66 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$426,500

67 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

68 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

69 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

70 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

71 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

72 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

73 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

74 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$426,500

75 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

76 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

77 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

78 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

79 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

80 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

81 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

82 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$426,500

83 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

84 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

85 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

86 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

87 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

88 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

89 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

90 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$426,500

$5,218,000

91 $30,000

92 $10,000

93 $45,000

94 $522,000

95 $5,000

96 $10,000

97 $5,000

$627,000

98 $30,000

99 $45,000

100 $30,000

101 $281,000

102 $313,000

103 $31,000

104 $10,000

105 $5,000

106 $80,000

107 $20,000

108 $10,000

109 $16,000

110 $4,000

111 $20,000

112 $10,000

$905,000

$1,532,000

$6,750,000

$675,000

$7,425,000

Bidding, Contract Award & Execution Services

Funding Administration

Administration & Legal

Project Administration

Design

Environmental - CEQA Categorical Exemption

Construction Engineering Services

Funding Administration

Resident Project Representative @ Full-time for 32 Weeks

Indirect Construction Costs

Project Administration

Labor Code Compliance

SCADA/Programming

1.  All costs in October 2024 dollars at an ENR index of 13632.

TOTAL PROJECT COST

Environmental Services During Construction

Permit Compliance

Bridge Loan Administration

As-Built (Record) Drawings

11-Month Warranty Inspection

Post Construction Services

O&M Manuals

Special Inspections

SUBTOTAL INDIRECT CONSTRUCTION COSTS

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS

     Filter 6

     Filter 5

     Subtotal Filter 5 Construction Cost

Subtotal Project Cost

Project Contingencies @ 10% of Project Costs

Indirect Design Costs

Hazard Assessment (demolition)

Monument Preservation

SUBTOTAL INDIRECT DESIGN COSTS

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COSTS

     Subtotal Filter 6 Construction Cost

     Subtotal Filter 7 Construction Cost

     Subtotal Filter 8 Construction Cost

     Filter 8

     Filter 7

M:\Jobs\0104 CCCSD\0104.68 WTP PER\12 Prelim Engineering\03 Engr Report\Cost Estimate\CCCSD Cost Est.xlsx



No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost
1 Total Cost

1 Mobilization/Demobilization 1 LS $25,000 $25,000

2 Bonds 1 LS $78,000 $78,000

3 Submittals 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

4 Insurance 1 LS $40,000 $40,000

5 Cleanup 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

6 Project Sign 1 LS $2,500 $2,500

7 Trench Sheeting & Shoring 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

8 Erosion Control Plan & Implementation 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

$186,000

9 48" Flanged BFV 2 EA $75,000 $150,000

10 Motor Actuator Improvements 2 EA $20,000 $40,000

$190,000

     Chlorination Facility

11 Pre-Filter Chlorination Vault 1 LS $270,000 $270,000

12 Post-Filter Chlorination Vault 1 LS $110,000 $110,000

13 24" FW Pipe Replacement 1 LS $148,000 $148,000

$528,000

     Filter Control Facility

14 MCC 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

15 Filter Breaker Panel 1 LS $50,000 $50,000

16 Misc. Electrical & Telemetry 1 LS $15,000 $15,000

17 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

$370,000

18 Filter Demolition 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

19 Piping Demolition 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

20 Building Repair 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

$25,000

21 Filter Demolition 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

22 Piping Demolition 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

23 Building Repair 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

$25,000

24 Filter Demolition 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

25 Piping Demolition 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

26 Building Repair 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

$25,000

27 Filter Demolition 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

28 Piping Demolition 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

29 Building Repair 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

$25,000

30 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

31 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

32 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $2,000 $16,000

33 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,000 $3,000

34 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $3,500 $21,000

35 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

36 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

37 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$409,000

38 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

39 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

40 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

41 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

42 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

43 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

44 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

45 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$426,500

46 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

47 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

48 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

49 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

50 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

51 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

52 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

53 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$426,500

     General

APPENDIX A

CLEAR CREEK CSD

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT

ALTERNATIVE 2 COST ESTIMATE

Construction Costs

     Filter 4

     Subtotal General Cost

     Intake Facilities

     Subtotal Intake Facility Construction Cost

     Subtotal Chlorination Facility Construction Cost

     Subtotal Filter Control Facility Construction Cost

     Filter 1

     Subtotal Filter 1 Construction Cost

     Filter 2

     Subtotal Filter 2 Construction Cost

     Filter 3

     Subtotal Filter 3 Construction Cost

     Subtotal Filter 4 Construction Cost

     Filter 5

     Subtotal Filter 5 Construction Cost

     Filter 6

     Subtotal Filter 6 Construction Cost

     Filter 7

     Subtotal Filter 7 Construction Cost

M:\Jobs\0104 CCCSD\0104.68 WTP PER\12 Prelim Engineering\03 Engr Report\Cost Estimate\CCCSD Cost Est.xlsx



No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost
1 Total Cost

54 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

55 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

56 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $2,000 $16,000

57 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,000 $3,000

58 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $3,500 $21,000

59 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

60 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

61 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$409,000

62 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

63 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

64 Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

65 Yard Piping 1 LS $95,000 $95,000

66 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

67 14" Flanged BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

68 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

69 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

70 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

71 New 10' x 50' Filter 1 EA $300,000 $300,000

72 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

73 Building Expansion 1 LS $240,000 $240,000

$946,500

74 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

75 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

76 Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

77 Yard Piping 1 LS $95,000 $95,000

78 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

79 14" Flanged BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

80 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

81 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

82 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

83 New 10' x 50' Filter 1 EA $300,000 $300,000

84 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

85 Building Expansion 1 LS $240,000 $240,000

$946,500

86 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

87 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

88 Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

89 Yard Piping 1 LS $95,000 $95,000

90 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

91 14" Flanged BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

92 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

93 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

94 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

95 New 10' x 50' Filter 1 EA $300,000 $300,000

96 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

97 Building Expansion 1 LS $240,000 $240,000

$946,500

$5,884,500

98 $30,000

99 $10,000

100 $50,000

101 $589,000

102 $5,000

103 $10,000

104 $10,000

$704,000

105 $30,000

106 $50,000

107 $30,000

108 $314,000

109 $352,000

110 $34,000

111 $10,000

112 $5,000

113 $100,000

114 $20,000

115 $10,000

116 $18,000

117 $4,000

118 $20,000

119 $10,000

$1,007,000

$1,711,000

$7,595,500

$760,000

$8,355,500

Funding Administration

     Filter 8

     Subtotal Filter 8 Construction Cost

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COSTS

Indirect Design Costs

Permits

Administration & Legal

Project Administration

Design

Hazard Assessment (demolition)

Environmental - CEQA Categorical Exemption

Environmental Services During Construction

Indirect Construction Costs

Project Administration

Bidding, Contract Award & Execution Services

Construction Engineering Services

Funding Administration

SUBTOTAL INDIRECT DESIGN COSTS

Resident Project Representative @ Full-time for 32 Weeks

Labor Code Compliance

Special Inspections

1.  All costs in October 2024 dollars at an ENR index of 13632.

     Filter 9

     Subtotal Filter 9 Construction Cost

     Filter 10

     Subtotal Filter 10 Construction Cost

     Filter 11

     Subtotal Filter 11 Construction Cost

Permit Compliance

SCADA/Programming

O&M Manuals

Post Construction Services

As-Built (Record) Drawings

11-Month Warranty Inspection

Bridge Loan Administration

SUBTOTAL INDIRECT CONSTRUCTION COSTS

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS

Subtotal Project Cost

Project Contingencies @ 10% of Project Costs

TOTAL PROJECT COST

M:\Jobs\0104 CCCSD\0104.68 WTP PER\12 Prelim Engineering\03 Engr Report\Cost Estimate\CCCSD Cost Est.xlsx



No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost
1 Total Cost

1 Mobilization/Demobilization 1 LS $25,000 $25,000

2 Bonds 1 LS $110,000 $110,000

3 Submittals 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

4 Insurance 1 LS $40,000 $40,000

5 Cleanup 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

6 Project Sign 1 LS $2,500 $2,500

7 Trench Sheeting & Shoring 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

8 Erosion Control Plan & Implementation 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

$218,000

9 48" Flanged BFV 2 EA $75,000 $150,000

10 Motor Actuator Improvements 2 EA $20,000 $40,000

$190,000

     Chlorination Facility

11 Pre-Filter Chlorination Vault 1 LS $270,000 $270,000

12 Post-Filter Chlorination Vault 1 LS $110,000 $110,000

13 24" FW Pipe Replacement 1 LS $148,000 $148,000

$528,000

     Filter Control Facility

14 MCC 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

15 Filter Breaker Panel 1 LS $50,000 $50,000

16 Misc. Electrical & Telemetry 1 LS $15,000 $15,000

17 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

$370,000

18 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

19 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

20 Modify Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

21 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

22 14" Flanged BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

23 18" Flanged BFV 1 EA $5,000 $5,000

24 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

25 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

26 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

27 New 8' x 50' Roughing Filter 1 EA $250,000 $250,000

28 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

$566,500

29 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

30 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

31 Modify Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

32 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

33 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

34 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

35 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

36 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

37 New 8' x 50' Roughing Filter 1 EA $250,000 $250,000

38 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

$561,500

39 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

40 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

41 Modify Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

42 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

43 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

44 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

45 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

46 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

47 New 8' x 50' Roughing Filter 1 EA $250,000 $250,000

48 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

$561,500

49 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

50 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

51 Modify Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

52 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

53 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

54 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

55 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

56 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

57 New 8' x 50' Roughing Filter 1 EA $250,000 $250,000

58 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

$561,500

     General

APPENDIX A

CLEAR CREEK CSD

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT

ALTERNATIVE 3 COST ESTIMATE

Construction Costs

     Filter 4

     Subtotal General Cost

     Intake Facilities

     Subtotal Intake Facility Construction Cost

     Subtotal Chlorination Facility Construction Cost

     Subtotal Filter Control Facility Construction Cost

     Filter 1

     Subtotal Filter 1 Construction Cost

     Filter 2

     Subtotal Filter 2 Construction Cost

     Filter 3

     Subtotal Filter 3 Construction Cost

     Subtotal Filter 4 Construction Cost

M:\Jobs\0104 CCCSD\0104.68 WTP PER\12 Prelim Engineering\03 Engr Report\Cost Estimate\CCCSD Cost Est.xlsx



No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost
1 Total Cost

59 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

60 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

61 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

62 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

63 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

64 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

65 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

66 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$426,500

67 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

68 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

69 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

70 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

71 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

72 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

73 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

74 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$426,500

75 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

76 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

77 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

78 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

79 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

80 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

81 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

82 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$426,500

83 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

84 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $25,000 $25,000

85 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

86 14" Wafer BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

87 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

88 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

89 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

90 Rehab Filter 1 LS $300,000 $300,000

$426,500

91 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

92 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

93 Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

94 Yard Piping 1 LS $95,000 $95,000

95 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

96 14" Flanged BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

97 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

98 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

99 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

100 New 10' x 50' Filter 1 EA $300,000 $300,000

101 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

102 Building Expansion 1 LS $240,000 $240,000

$946,500

103 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

104 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

105 Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

106 Yard Piping 1 LS $95,000 $95,000

107 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

108 14" Flanged BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

109 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

110 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

111 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

112 New 10' x 50' Filter 1 EA $300,000 $300,000

113 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

114 Building Expansion 1 LS $240,000 $240,000

$946,500

115 Testing 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

116 Filter Electromagnetic Flow Meter 1 EA $20,000 $20,000

117 Filter Piping 1 LS $160,000 $160,000

118 Yard Piping 1 LS $95,000 $95,000

119 12" Wafer BFV 8 EA $3,000 $24,000

120 14" Flanged BFV 1 EA $3,500 $3,500

121 Pneumatic Actuator 6 EA $5,000 $30,000

122 Electric Motor Actuator 3 EA $10,000 $30,000

123 3" Solenoid Control Valve 3 EA $3,000 $9,000

124 New 10' x 50' Filter 1 EA $300,000 $300,000

125 Filter Footing 1 LS $30,000 $30,000

126 Building Expansion 1 LS $240,000 $240,000

$946,500

$8,102,500

     Filter 5

     Subtotal Filter 5 Construction Cost

     Filter 6

     Subtotal Filter 6 Construction Cost

     Filter 7

     Subtotal Filter 7 Construction Cost

     Filter 8

     Subtotal Filter 8 Construction Cost

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COSTS

     Filter 9

     Subtotal Filter 9 Construction Cost

     Filter 10

     Subtotal Filter 10 Construction Cost

     Filter 11

     Subtotal Filter 11 Construction Cost

M:\Jobs\0104 CCCSD\0104.68 WTP PER\12 Prelim Engineering\03 Engr Report\Cost Estimate\CCCSD Cost Est.xlsx



No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost
1 Total Cost

127 $30,000

128 $10,000

129 $60,000

130 $649,000

131 $5,000

132 $10,000

133 $10,000

$774,000

134 $30,000

135 $60,000

136 $30,000

137 $396,000

138 $450,000

139 $43,000

140 $10,000

141 $5,000

142 $100,000

143 $20,000

144 $10,000

145 $20,000

146 $4,000

147 $20,000

148 $10,000

$1,178,000

$10,054,500

$10,828,500

$1,083,000

$11,911,500

Funding Administration

Indirect Design Costs

Permits

Administration & Legal

Project Administration

Design

Hazard Assessment (demolition)

Environmental - CEQA Categorical Exemption

Environmental Services During Construction

Indirect Construction Costs

Project Administration

Bidding, Contract Award & Execution Services

Construction Engineering Services

Funding Administration

SUBTOTAL INDIRECT DESIGN COSTS

Resident Project Representative @ Full-time for 32 Weeks

Labor Code Compliance

Special Inspections

1.  All costs in October 2024 dollars at an ENR index of 13632.

Permit Compliance

SCADA/Programming

O&M Manuals

Post Construction Services

As-Built (Record) Drawings

11-Month Warranty Inspection

Bridge Loan Administration

SUBTOTAL INDIRECT CONSTRUCTION COSTS

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS

Subtotal Project Cost

Project Contingencies @ 10% of Project Costs

TOTAL PROJECT COST

M:\Jobs\0104 CCCSD\0104.68 WTP PER\12 Prelim Engineering\03 Engr Report\Cost Estimate\CCCSD Cost Est.xlsx



































































 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  December 18th 2024 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re: 6d – Leaks and Repairs Report and Options – (Discussion/Action) 
 
 
Discussion/Action: 
 
 
6.d – Leaks and Repairs Report and Options – (Discussion/Action) 
 
In November the Board received a report from the Distribution Supervisor on all of the Distribution division 
activities. 
 
There was also a discussion of the large number of emergency leak’s and leak repairs.  Since then there have 
been more leaks – including one on Thanksgiving and repaired the next day. 
 
Since the beginning of November there have been 12 emergency repair leaks.  The Board requested this item 
to have a discussion of the leaks and repairs and options for resolving these issues. 
 
Some options: 

- Find an estimated cost for key areas 
- Include in the developing Clear Creek CSD “Major Repairs and Replacement” Spreadsheet that is 

similar to a CIP. 
- Hold Community meetings in targeted areas. 
- Keep working on the Distribution Improvement grant that was submitted to the State in 2021/22 

o Note: the State informed the district that there was no money for this grant in February of 
2024.  Its hoped the State Fiscal condition will improve and there will be funding in 2025 

- Develop another “Line replacement” grant and submit to State Water Boards or SRF (State Revolving 
fund) or other funding agency. 

- Develop a strategy on leak locations and increasing repair areas 
- Other Funding and or replacement methods 

 
Attached: November list of leaks/projects supplied by the Distribution Supervisor 
  November December List of Emergency Repair leaks (12) 
  List of recent leaks with impacted/effected accounts numbers 
   
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Review and Provide Staff Direction 
 



(This List from the November Board meeting - Reported by Dist. Sup. Morgan Raue





Line Repairs from November 7th - December 5th, 2024 
 
November 7, 2024 
Location: Lassen Ave.& Monte Vista Rd. 
Description: Main line repair (14” AC) 
Total hours: 24 
Personnel: 5 people 
 
November 8, 2024 
Location: Krone Ave. & Dorvel Ln. 
Description: Main line repair (4” AC) 
Total hours: 6 (with vac trailer) 
Personnel: 5 people 
  
November 8,2024 
Location: Lassen Ave. 
Description: Service line crossing (4” PVC) 
Total hours: 10 (includes 7 hours with Axner Construction)  
Personnel: 5 people  
 
November 10 ,2024 
Location: Flowers Ln. 
Description: Main line repair (10” AC) 
Total hours: 11 (Includes 7 hours with Axner Construction) 
Personnel: 2 people 
  
November 13,2024 
Location: Wendell Way/ Hawthorne Ave. 
Description: Fire hydrant repair (hit by tree company) 
Total hours: 8 (includes 2 hours with Davis Excavating) 
Personnel: 2 people  
 
November 18,2024 
Location: Coyote Ln.  
Description:  Service line repair (2” x 20’) 
Total Hours: 7 (with vac trailer) 
Personnel: 3 people 
 
November 21, 2024  
Location: 17515 Flowers Ln. 
Description: Service line repair (2” PVC) 
Total Hours: 6 
Personnel: 3 people 
 



 
 
 
 
 
November 29, 2024 
Location: 17720 Flowers Ln. 
Description: Main line repair (10” AC) 
Total Hours: 8 
Personnel: 4 people 
 
December 3, 2024 
Location: 17197 Dorvel Ln. 
Description: Main line repair (6” AC) 
Total Hours: 11 (includes 3 hours with Davis Excavation) 
Personnel: 3 people 
 
December 3, 2024 
Location: 17591 Flowers Ln. 
Description: Service line repair (2” PVC and ¾” Poly) 
Total Hours: 4 (with vac trailer) 
Personnel: 4 people  
 
December 5, 2024 
Location: 17590 China Gulch Dr. 
Description: ¾” service line repair 
Total Hours: 3 
Personnel: 4 people 
 
December 5, 2024 
Location: 16335 China Gulch Dr. 
Description: 2” Corp stop replacement from 8” main, 2” PVC service line replacement, ¾” 
Poly service line replacement 
Total Hours: 5 
Personnel: 4 people 
 
Note: All repairs were emergency work. 



Leak Tracker 2024

Date Leak Address Streets Affected Number of Customers Affected Notified
10/16/2024 China Gulch Dr China Gulch Dr, 

China Way, Cowan 
Ct, Cerro Ct, Siesta 

Ct, Bohn Blvd, 
Jaydee Ln, Brehaven 

Ln, Quiet Dr, 
Richards Way

101

11/8/2024 Lassen Ave Lassen, Krone, 
Dorvel, Monte Vista, 
Happy Way, Zanita 
Trail, Wild Bill Way, 
Roy Ln, Shank Rd, 

Old Ranch Rd, Jerry 
Ln, Jujo Dr, Walu Dr, 
Jack Rabbit Ln, Pine 
St, and West side of 

Olinda Rd

197

11/21/2024 17515 Flowers Ln Flowers 75
11/28/2024 17720 Flowers Ln Flowers 70
12/2/2024 17197 Dorvel Ln Dorvel & Krone 29
12/5/2024 16335 China Gulch 

Dr
Richards Way, 

China Gulch, Sylvan 
Ln and Windsory Ln

101

12/5/2024 17590 China Gulch 
Dr

Richards Way, 
China Gulch, Sylvan 
Ln and Windsory Ln

101



5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 
Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 

MEMO 

Date: December 18th 2024 

To: Board of Directors 

From: General Manager – Paul Kelley 

Re: 6e – Ordinance 2024-10 Reserve Policy (Discussion/Action) 

Discussion/Action: 

6.e – Ordinance 2024-10 Reserve Policy (Discussion/Action)

The last updated Reserve policy was from 2008.  It was adopted via Ordinance 2008-11 on December 17th 
2008 in response to the State’s potential raid on Special District funds. (Old Ordinance Attached - Policy 
on Website)

This updated Reserve policy is a little more broad to include goals like better overall financial 
management strategy for the District and to provide a foundation for sustainable delivery of services. 

Since 2008 (and 2012 revision), there is a new water rate and fee structure, and there are state loan 
requirements to have restricted funds. 

This updated Reserve Policy has been reviewed by the Finance committee and is ready for approval. 

Recommendation: 

Review, Discussion, Approve Ordinance 2024-10 to adopt the Reserve Policy 



CLEAR CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-10 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CLEAR CREEK COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT TO ADOPT THE CLEAR CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
Reserve Fund Policy.   

WHEREAS, the Clear Creek CSD is a Special District and has a constitutional authority under 
Article XIIIB of the State to establish such reserve funds as the Board of Directors deem 
“reasonable and proper”; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors recognizes that Reserves are developed as part of an 
overall financial management strategy for a District, and CCCSD is a fiscally 
responsible local government agency pursuing a sound reserve policy; and 

WHEREAS, The Board of Directors recognizes the need to establish a Reserve Fund Policy to 
enable the foundation of the sustainable delivery of services; and 

WHEREAS, the prudent and fiscally responsible management of the District calls for 
reserve funds be established and maintained to fund expenses and to reiterate the Boards 
authority for the use of funds.; and 

WHEREAS, The Board of Directors recognizes the need to establish restricted and un-
restricted reserves for specific needs – including restricted reserves for State loans that require 
restricted reserves for repayment; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to provide to the District’s customers the best 
possible service and sound fiscal management through the adoption of this updated Reserve 
Fund policy; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, that the Clear Creek Community Services District does 
hereby adopt the Clear Creek CSD Reserve Fund Policy dated December 18, 2024 to replace 
all prior Reserve Fund Policies.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the Board of Directors of the Clear Creek Community Services 
District, this 18th day of December 2024 by the following vote:   

Motion: Second: 

Ayes: __ Noes: ___ Absent:___ Abstain:___ 

________________________________ Attest: ___________________________ 
Terry Lincoln, Chair of the Board Paul Kelley, General Manager 

And Secretary to the Board of 
Directors of the Clear Creek 
Community Services District 



 

1 
 

 

 
 

Reserve Fund Policy 
 

Document Type: Reserve Fund Policy 
Administering Entity: General Manager, Board of Directors 
Date Approved: December 18, 2024 
Last Amendment Date:  November 2012 (November 2008) 
Approved By: Paul Kelley, General Manager, Board of Directors 
Indicative Time for Review: Bi-Annually (Every Two Years) 
Responsibility for Review: General Manager, Board of Directors 
 

 

DISCUSSION AND INTENT OF THIS POLICY 

All governments are required to report equity - assets minus liabilities - in terms of net assets. 

The accumulated equity does not include net investments (funds already spent on capital 

assets, less outstanding debt), because net investments should not be viewed as available funds 

for future activities.  

Clear Creek Community Service District (CCCSD) is a Special District and has a constitutional 

authority under Article XIIIB to establish such reserve funds as the Board of Directors deem 

“reasonable and proper”.  Reserves are developed as part of an overall financial management 

strategy for a district, and CCCSD is a fiscally responsible local government agency pursuing a 

sound reserve policy.   

CCCSD is responsible for building and maintaining millions of dollars’ worth of infrastructure 

critical to the continued long-term economic health of the CCCSD and the southern Shasta 

County area. 

CCCSD's cash reserve accounts were established as part of the overall financial management 

strategy for the district.   

Reserves are the foundation of the sustainable delivery of services.  Through reserves the 

CCCSD offers customers/ratepayers and taxpayers significant benefits including: 



 

2 
 

• Savings by balancing budgets 

• Stable rates 

• Well maintained infrastructure 

• Investment in the future 

• Ready for emergency situations 
 

CCCSD complies with accounting requirements when reporting reserves.  

The intent of this policy is to: 

• Establishes a comprehensive reserve policy to ensure use of the accumulated public 
funds cover only reasonable and necessary expenses. 

• Distinguishes between restricted and unrestricted net assets. Establishes distinct 
purposes for all reserves held by the district. 

• Establishes target levels where appropriate, i.e., minimum, and maximum amounts for 
the accumulation of reserves necessary for maintaining the CCCSD’s credit worthiness 
and to minimize external borrowing and interest expense. 

• Identifies events or conditions that prompt the use of each. Conforms to the CCCSD's 
plan to acquire or build capital assets. 

• Receives Board of Directors approval in the form of an Ordinance adopting the policy. 

• Requires periodic review of reserve balances and the rationale of maintaining such 
balances. 

 

RESERVE POLICY 

The District segments its reserves into the following categories: 

• Unrestricted General Reserves – held to facilitate the operations of the CCCSD like 
working capital for cash flow requirements, operational reserves for flexibility to respond 
quickly to unforeseen events or emergency repairs or water quality issues. 

• Designated Restricted Funds - held to satisfy specific purposes set by requirements 
of creditors, law, grantors, contributors, statutes or by internal requirements of 
ordinances or contracts. 

• Discretionary Reserve Funds - not required by creditors, law, grantors, statute, etc. The 
purpose of establishing these funds is to ensure adequate levels of reserves or funds are 
designated for legitimate purposes that are critical to the success of stable short- and 
long-term operation of the District. 

 

 

 

 



 

3 
 

DESCRIPTION OF RESERVE POLICY 

Unrestricted General Reserves – held to facilitate the operations of the CCCSD, like working 

capital for cash flow requirements, operational reserves for flexibility to respond quickly to 

unforeseen events or emergency repairs or water quality issues. 

• General Reserves – are replenished through the District’s budget process as “additions 
to reserves”.  This account is the General Fund Checking for the day to day operations 
and expenses of the District.  The number of additions are based on the needs of the 
District.  The Board approves the additions to reserves through the budget process and 
reviews annually. Funds held in General fund Checking (Asset Account 5000). 

 

Designated Restricted Funds –held to satisfy specific purposes set by requirements of 

creditors, law, grantors, contributors, statutes or by internal requirements of ordinances or 

contracts. Detail descriptions below: 

• USBR Emergency Reserve (CD) 

• Filtration Plant Reserve (CD) 

• Filter Plant Repayment Reserve (Yearly Loan Payment – Funded by Fee) 

• Backwash Recycle Water Reserve (Yearly Loan Payments & 1 Year’s Payment – Funded 
by Fee) 

• WIIN Act Fee Repayment Reserve (Funded by Fee) 

• Backwash Ponds Carr Fire Project Reserve  

• Carr Fire Funds Account 

• Customer Water Deposits 
Detailed Description 

 

• USBR Emergency Reserve (CD) –held to satisfy the requirements contained in the long-
term water service contract with the Bureau of Reclamation. The minimum amount of 
this fund should be $35,000 as established in the contract. The current balance is held 
in a CD (Certificate of Deposit) Current Assets Account 7001. The triggering event for use 
is a declaration by the Board of Directors that an emergency situation exists on the 
conduit, and is likely to jeopardize health and safety standards, fish, and wildlife, etc., if 
immediate corrective action is not taken. The CCCSD is contractually obligated to 
replenish the funds if depleted within years. 
 

• Filter Plant Reserve (CD) – held to satisfy the requirement by the Department of Water 
Resources Revolving Loan Fund. This reserve is required to equal two semi annual 
payments of the DWR filter plant debt service, in the amount of $244,000. The current 
balance is held in a CD Asset. The triggering event for use is default on the loans on the 
part of CCCSD. In that instance, DWR would seize the funds to satisfy the amount due, 
and the district would then be contractually obligated to replenish the fund. 

 



 

4 
 

• Filter Plant Repayment Reserve (Loan Payment Account) – a separate bank account and 
has been established to deposit the $7.55 fee collected on the monthly water bills 
included in the Base Water Rate to make the semi-annual payments for the filter plant 
loan. 

 

• Backwash Recycle Project Reserve (Loan Payment) – held to satisfy the requirement of 
the California State Water Resources Control Board for Publicly Owned Treatment Works 
(POTW) Construction Financing. Clean Water State Revolving Fund Project No. C-06-
8130-110.  Project Funding Agreement No. D1501028 was $933,143.00 by the State with 
$466,572.00 in principle to be paid back to the State and Contingent Principal 
Forgiveness of $466,571.00. Term of the Agreement is from March 1, 2016 to June 31, 
2047.  Authorized by Ordinance 2015-06 a separate bank account (Asset Account 5025) 
has been established to deposit the $.38 Backwash Recycle Project Fee collected on the 
monthly water bills included in the Base Water Rate to make payments to the Backwash 
Recycle Project loan.  This account is restricted for the annual loan payments and to hold 
the required amount for one year’s principle and interest payment as per loan 
agreement – minimum balance ($17,689.08) till end of loan agreement. 
 

• WIIN Act Fee Repayment Reserve 72225 –Contract No. 14-06-200-489-A-P between the 
U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Reclamation and CCCSD in the amount of 
$859,452 was approved by the board in December of 20220 and had a final payment due 
December 1, 2023.  This WIIN Act payment of the District’s infrastructure obligation 
converted its contract for 15,300AFY to a perpetual contract.  The District made no 
payments until a credit of $207,952 was found in early 2021 and applied as a payment.  
After that credit/payment, the obligation was $651,500 and the District calculated the 
cost to customers during the Prop 218 Rate Schedule a fee of $1.88.  This was based on 
the customers repaying this cost over a 12-year period. Monies were paid from the 
General Fund Checking Account in lieu of getting an outside loan to pay back this 
obligation – essentially borrowing from operating reserves for two fiscal years.  Final 
payment on the $651,500 obligation was made in October of 2023 and converted the 
contract to a perpetual one.  After the $1.88/month fee was established this reserve 
account was not established for a number of months and the fee was absorbed into the 
General Checking.  This amount is $27,496.78 resulting in the final amount “borrowed” 
from the General Checking to be: $624,003.  This Reserve fund is the $1.88 fee that is 
included in the Base Water Rate is designated for this reserve and is transferred annually 
to the General Fund Checking from WIIN Act Repayment Asset Account 5010. The 
repayment of the General Fund WIIN act payment loan started in FY 24 as $55,000/year 
reserve will stay in place until the funds are paid back in full approximately 10 years. 

 

• Backwash Ponds Carr Fire Project Reserve –held to satisfy the Grant Program FEMA-
4282-DR-CA and Cal OES ID: 089-91008 in the amount of $1,903,821. The 2018 CARR Fire 
destroyed the adjacent watershed to the CCCSD backwash recycle ponds and surface 



 

5 
 

runoff and subsurface flow has increased, which impacts the ability of the ponds to 
recycle backwash water.  The project includes construction of an underdrain pipe 
network, recycle pumps, structural concrete bottom and side slopes to the ponds, pond 
overflow outlets and SCADA replacement.  The total project had an original estimate of 
$3.6 Million and was updated to $6 million after design and construction bids were 
received.  Money received through Grant Program FEMA-4282-DR-CA and Cal OES ID: 
089-91008. 

 

• Carr Fire Account – Asset Account 5035 includes funds received from JPIA after the Carr 
fire incident and used by the district for emergency repairs from the Fire.  This account 
will need to be reconciled with JPIA, and potentially unneeded/unused funds returned. 
 

• Customer Water Deposits –held in trust for customers as required by CCCSD Rules and 
Regulations. There is no target amount for this fund and the triggering event for use is 
to satisfy delinquent accounts or refund to customers under certain terms and conditions 
outlined in district rules and regulations.  There is currently no designated account to 
hold these funds and they are put into the General Fund Checking Asset Account and are 
tracked as a Long-Term Liability 9500 on the Balance sheet. 

 

DISCRETIONARY RESERVE FUNDS –not required by creditors, law, grantors, statute, etc. The 

purpose of establishing these funds is to ensure adequate levels of reserves or funds are 

designated for legitimate purposes that are critical to the success of stable short- and long-term 

operation of the District. 

• State Loan Repayment Reserve (funded by Fee) 

• Penalties Reserve 

• Operational Reserve 

• Capital Improvements and Modernization Reserve  

• Emergency Fund Reserve 
 

• State Loan Repayment Reserve (Funded by Fee) – a separate bank account has been 
established to deposit the $1.00 fee collected on the monthly water bills included in the 
Base Water Rate for the State Loan Repayment. This amount was established for the 
anticipated loan or grant for system improvements.  Funds are held in Asset Account and 
are designated now as discretionary, for current and future grant or loan needs.  In 2024, 
the District attained a Grant Anticipation Loan from RCAC to implement the Backwash 
Ponds Concrete Lining project and this fund will be used for the loan costs to implement 
a $6 million grant funded project. 

 

• Penalties Reserve –Used for tracking purposes only during times of drought when there 
are penalties assessed for over usage of water.  These funds are deposited into the 
General fund checking Asset Account. 



 

6 
 

 

 

• Operational Reserve – Currently funded monthly by 4.1% of the current water usage 
rate collected from customers each month and are designated for operations and held 
in Asset Account 5045. This reserve can also hold the “year end fund balance” for excess 
funds from an operational year and could be used for budgeting the next year as fund 
balance transfer revenue.  The triggering event for use is reserve funding approval by the 
Board of Directors. Target: $1,000,000 

 

• Capital Improvements and Modernization Reserve 75200 –a capital improvement fund 
for infrastructure additions and improvements within the distribution system. The 
current balance is held in Asset Account 5030. This account is funded by transferring 
1.8% of the Base Rate charges collected and transferred each month at reconciliation. to 
allow for future storage, line loops, etc., without concern for depletion of the fund. The 
triggering event for use is project funding approval by the Board of Directors. Target 
amount is: $1,500,000 

 

• Emergency Fund Reserve 75210 –held in Asset Account 5015.  The triggering event for 
use is project funding approval by the Board of Directors for emergency situations. Target 
amount is: $250,000 
 

 

Reserves for agency operations can help ensure customers experience stable rates and security 

that CCCSD can respond to short and long-term emergencies without delay made necessary by 

seeking out loans, grants, etc.  Once emergency and operational reserves are considered, many 

Districts consider other reserves like rate stabilization, major repairs and replacement and 

equipment upgrades. 

The ability to maintain adequate reserves is critical to providing reliable, stable service insuring 

the district's overall financial strength. Adequate reserves directly affect the district's bond 

rating and ability to access favorable interest rates, securing the ability to finance and/or 

construct infrastructure necessary to the existing system and expand facilities for future 

demand. 

 

 

 

 





 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  December 18th 2024 
To:  Board of Directors 
From:  General Manager Paul Kelley 
Re:  7 – General Manager Report 
 
Report: 
A quick activity report, more by the General Manager verbally at the meeting:  

Starting the week of November 19th, 2024 

• Worked on the three grant projects: - (Update on this agenda) 
o Backwash ponds –  

 Concrete pour is complete 
 Pictures submitted, Punch list is in review and testing to commence soon. 
 Still - Looking for ways to updated the website 

o Distribution System Improvement Grant – Nothing new to report, waiting for update from 
State on inquiry of status. 
 State had informed the District Early ’24 that no money was available. 
 The District & PACE Eng have sent the State a note requesting update and next steps 

o ARPA This has been submitted to County for reimbursement and some reimbursements 
 Meter Registers and Endpoints to be worked with Badger and then installed 
 We have received the funds from the County 

•  
• Staff – Changes at the District 

o Is fully staffed and employees went through an ACWA/JPIA full day of training 
o ACWA/JPIA also doing a liability assessment and report on updates to IIPP 

• The CUSI – new customer database software is looked at to help with meter Reading  
o The new challenge is getting CUSI to port information accurately to QuickBooks. 
o This appears to be worked out as we get closer to FY 24 Budget to Actuals completion 

• The Audit RFP had responses, the Finance Committee was staffed and made a recommendation 
• The Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) and the ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Agency 

(JPIA) had their semi annual conference the first week of December.   
o JPIA update: 

 Liability rates have gone up 7-8% but less than last year 
 Workers comp rates holding stable 
 Cyber Security – rates ok, but increasing, more tools for Districts and warnings. 

o ACWA 
 More weather forcasting tools – and Atmospheric rivers – in panels and Exhibit hall 
 Fisheries challenges and crazy stories from Southern Ca basin 
 Technology for leaks/GIS/and pumps and energy – solar 
 Healthy Rivers update 
 USBR – CVP Family reception with State Water Project 

o  
• Other/More – Verbal 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121  
 

 

 

MEMO 
Date:  December 18th 2024 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Chief Plant Operator: Bill Palmaymesa & Distribution Field Supervisor: Morgan Rau 
  General Manager Paul Kelley & Administrative Assistant Amity Valdez 
 
Re:  8 – Operation Report 
 
Administration 
There were 260 Accounts that are 90+ days delinquent totaling $88,751.20 
There were 238 Accounts that are 60-90 Days delinquent totaling $23, 488.98 
There were 433 Accounts that are 30-60 Days delinquent totaling $44,208.23 
 
The office staff have been collaborating with the distribution team to install new transponders and integrate them into the 
CUSI system. This will enable us to conduct more electronic meter reads and achieve greater accuracy in our readings. We 
issued thirty-seven 24-hour door hangers and only had to discontinue service for seven customers, as the remaining 
customers either made payments or arranged payment plans. 
Our meter reading process commenced early this month due to the Christmas holiday. We are still resolving some issues with 
the electronic readers and our utility management system. Recently, we implemented a few updates to the CUSI system, 
which we believe will enhance the accuracy and timeliness of our readings and billing. 
Overall, we are working together as a cohesive team, supported by a dedicated group of staff. 
 
 
WTP OPERATIONS - The WTP produced 192af of SW; Clear Creek CSD used 123AF of SW in November (110AF – M&I, –
13 Ag).  2578AF total SW for WY24/25. Well Water Production- 0 af .   (Palmaymesa)  
 

• Staff has been busy with routine maintenance, monitoring, and operation of the WTP. The recent 
rains have caused some turbidity spikes.    The WTP is producing 2MGD. 

• BW Pond Repair Project: Approximately 1195 cubic yards of concrete have been poured into the 
pond bottom and side slopes.  Pond #3 concrete liner is complete.  Staff assisted the Contractors 
with setting up automatic pumps to keep the water out of the new pond during the recent storms.  
A walk through is scheduled for mid-December to develop a punch list to finalize this portion of 
the project. 

• Staff has inspected filters #1-#4, taking advantage of the warm weather.  Depressions were noted 
in Cell A of Filter #1.    

• WTP backflow devices have been tested and all have passed.  
• WTP Staff replaced the 12’’ backwash control butterfly valve and electric actuator on Train#2. 
• WTP Staff repaired the November 8th main line leak on Krone/Fuzzy Rd. and the November 10th 

Flowers Rd. main line leak. 
• Train#6 (Filter#8) remains offline, and the valves locked out.  This is due to the damaged media 

bed, sand in the underdrain system and leaking control valves.   
   

 
 
Distribution Operations Report  
Distribution Supervisor: Morgan Rau  



 
 

 

 

Leak Management: From November 7th to December 5th, we experienced a significant number 
of emergency leaks, totaling 12. Flowers Lane was the most affected area, with four leaks. We 
are collaborating with new contacts at PG&E to address the sensitive infrastructure of main lines 
and service lines. We have provided them with detailed locations, roads, and maps to prepare 
for future tree falls in the area. This issue is expected to recur annually with tree-falling 
companies, so we are developing a long-term plan with PG&E. 

Meter Reading: Our meter reading process has become much more efficient, cutting meter 
read time in half. Additionally, we installed over 100 new registers per meters, which have been 
successfully integrated into our system and billing. 

Contractor Collaboration: We have engaged new contractors to obtain quotes for upcoming 
repairs and paving projects. We aim to complete asphalt work on Setting Sun Drive and Lassen 
Avenue as soon as weather conditions permit. 

Organization and Maintenance: Significant efforts are underway to organize and clean our 
shop. We are re-purposing old dirt from leak dig-outs, which not only puts it to good use but also 
frees up valuable yard space. 

Backflow Testing: Backflow testing has been completed, with only one failure, and the affected 
party has been contacted. We are also becoming more familiar with the new cross-connection 
laws. 

Training and Development: Our team has participated in training sessions with JPIA, utilizing 
their training library to focus on the specific training needed. 

  
 
 



5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 
Phone: (530) 357-2121  

MEMO 
Date: December 18th 2024 

To: Board of Directors 

From: 

Re: 

Chief Plant Operator: Bill Palmaymesa & Distribution Field Supervisor: Morgan Rau 
General Manager Paul Kelley & Administrative Assistant Amity Valdez 

8 – Operation Report – Continued – Pictures of Pond 3 Liner Project - Dec 2024



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  December 18th 2024 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  9 – Standing Committee Report 
 
Report: From members of the Committees listed: 
 
 
Note:  
 
9.a – Agriculture –  
 
9.b – Finance – Met December 10th – item on this agenda. 
 
9.c – Planning / Steering – First Quarter 2025 
 
 


	Regular Meeting Agenda_December 18th  2024
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 5 - Consent
	5.a1 Regular Meeting Agenda_and_Minutes November 20th 2024
	5.a2 Finance Committee Meeting_Agenda and Minutes Dec 10 2024
	5.b 111424-121424 bill pmts
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6 Cover
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6a
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6b
	6.b Audit RFP Responders in Short form on Spreadsheet
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6c
	6.c1 Clear Creek CSD - WTP Improvements Report
	ENGINEER’S STATEMENT
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	ABBREVIATIONS
	1. INTRODUCTION
	2. EXISTING TREATMENT FACILITIES
	2.1 Raw Water Intake
	2.2 Pre-Filter Chlorination
	2.3 Coagulation
	2.4 Filtration
	Overview
	Performance
	Backwash

	2.5 Post-Filter Chlorination

	3. RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS
	3.1 Raw Water Intake
	3.2 Pre-Filter Chlorination
	3.3 Coagulation
	3.4 Filtration
	Alternative 1
	Alternative 2
	Alterative 3

	3.5 Post-Filter Chlorination

	Appendix A Cover Sheet
	CCCSD Cost Est. Appendix A
	CCCSD Cost Estimate Alternative 1
	CCCSD Cost Estimate Alternative 2
	CCCSD Cost Estimate Alternative 3


	6.c2 SWRCB Sanitary Survey Inspection 2022
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6d
	6.d1 Leak list from November Dist Sup Review
	6.d2 leaks NOV. DEC. 2024.D2
	6.d3 Leak Tracker with Number impacted
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6e
	6.e1 CCCSD Ordinance 2024-10
	6e2 CCCSD Reserves Policy.Dec2024.Final
	6.e3 2008 Reserve Fund Ordinance
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 7 - GM Report
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 8 - OP Report
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 8 - OP Report.wtppictures
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 9 - Committee reports



